
Yavapai College  
District Governing Board 

Workshop   
 

Tuesday, January 31, 2023 
 9:00 a.m. 

 
Career and Technical Education Center 

220 Ruger Road 
Prescott, Arizona 86301 

 
Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.)  §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Yavapai College 
District Governing Board and to the general public that the Board will hold a public meeting, open to the public as 
specified below.  The Board reserves the right to change the order of items on the agenda.  One or more members of 
the Board may participate in the meeting by telephonic communication. 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03.A.2, A.3 and A.4, the Board may vote to go into Executive Session, which will not be 
open to the public, for legal advice concerning any item on the agenda to review, discuss and consider records exempt by 
law from public inspection, including the receipt and discussion of information or testimony that is specifically required 
to be maintained as confidential by state or federal law; or to consult with and instruct its attorneys regarding its position 
on contracts, litigation or settlement discussions.  If indicated in the agenda, the Board may also vote to go into 
executive session, which will not be open to the public, to discuss specific agenda items. 

Persons with a disability may request a reasonable accommodation, such as a sign language interpreter or closed caption, 
by contacting the Executive Assistant at (928)776-2307.  Requests should be made as early as possible to allow time to 
arrange the accommodation. 

Please note that meeting conclusion time is included for planning purposes only and does not necessarily reflect the 
actual time of the agenda item. When regular board meetings, public hearings (both truth in taxation and budget 
adoption public hearings) and budget adoption special meetings are scheduled for the same date, each hearing or 
meeting will begin immediately upon adjournment of the preceding hearing or meeting.   

 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. General Functions: Procedural  
a. Call to Order {Time: 1} 

 
b. Election of Board Officers (Chair, Secretary) and Board Member Liaison Committee 

Appointments by Chair for 2023 – DISCUSSION AND DECISION {Time: 20} 
 

c. Adoption of Agenda – DECISION {Time: 1}  
 

SHORT RECESS 
 

2. Study Session   
a. Executive Session – Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.03(A)(9), Discussion 

Regarding the College’s Information Technology Security Plans, Procedures, 
Assessments, Measures or Systems – Mr. Patrick Burns, Chief Information Officer 
PROCEDURAL {Time: 60} 
 
 

1 of 64



b. Reconvene in Public Session – Attorney Lynne Adams 
 

c. Possible Action RE: Yavapai College’s Information Technology Security Systems 
and Plans as a result of Executive Session – Attorney Lynne Adams – DECISION 
{Time: 5} 

 
d. Revision to Yavapai College District Governing Board Policy 302 – Board 

Chairperson Role & Authority #6 - INFORMATION, DISCUSSION, AND 
DECISION – Board Member Deb McCasland {Time: 20} (Attached) 
 

e. Discussion on Individual Yavapai College District Governing Board Policies – 
INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION – Dr. David Borofsky, Director of the 
Arizona Association of Community Colleges Trustee {Time: 120} 

i. Board Policy 401 Delegation to and Accountability of President 
ii. Board Policy 402 Presidential Monitoring 
iii. Board Policy 307 Board Member Responsibilities 

 
LUNCH 

 
f. 2023 Board Member Conflict of Interest Forms – INFORMATION AND 

DISCUSSION – Attorney Lynne Adams {Time: 5} 
 

3. Board Business  
a. Yavapai College District Governing Board Code of Ethics - INFORMATION, 

DISCUSSION, AND DECISION {Time: 15} (Attached) 
 

b. Consent Agenda – DECISION {Time: 5} 
i. Board Workshop Minutes – Monday, November 14, 2022 (Attached) 
ii. Board Executive Session Confidential Minutes – Monday, November 14, 2022 
iii. Board Regular Minutes – Tuesday, November 15, 2022 (Attached) 
iv. Intergovernmental Agreement Northern Arizona Regional Training Academy 

(NARTA) Academy Sergeant (Attached) 
v. Intergovernmental Agreement Amendment Arizona Department of Economic 

Security (Attached)  
vi. Letter for Alternate to Service on Yavapai Combined Trust Board (Attached) 
vii. Yavapai College Summary of Program Deletion Proposals 

1. Early Childhood Education – AAS 
2. Windows Server Administrator Certificate  
3. Industrial Machine Mechanic (IMM) Certificate 
4. Advanced Electronics Certificate 
5. IMM – Hydro Utility Tech Certificate 
6. IMM – Mechanic Assistant Certificate  
7. IMM – Machine Fabrication Tech Certificate 
8. Integrated Systems Engineering Technician Certificate 

viii. Yavapai College Summary of New Program Proposals  
1. Bachelor of Science in Business – Accounting Concentration 
2. Bachelor of Science in Business – Entrepreneurship Concentration 
3. Automated Industrial Technology Certificate  

2 of 64



4. Licensed Practical Nursing (LPN) Certificate  
5. Community Health/Critical Care Paramedic Certificate   

 
4. Adjournment of Board Workshop: Procedural - DECISION {Time: 1} 

3 of 64



4 of 64



5 of 64



 
BOARD APPROVAL | January 28, 2022 

 

District Governing Board  

Code of Ethics  
 

A. The primary focus of the Board is to nurture a learning environment that through the 
President, welcomes and promotes the success of a diverse student body. 
 

B. The Board sets the tone of the college. Yavapai College District Governing Board 
members will follow all Board policies. 
 

C. The Board’s primary function is to establish the policies by which the college shall be 
administered.  Authority to initiate policy recommendations, administer academic 
programs, conduct college business, and implement board actions is delegated to the 
college president.  Yavapai College District Governing Board will respect the delegation 
to the president to administer the college. 
 

D. The Board is responsible for creating and maintaining a spirit of cooperation and a 
mutually supportive relationship with its president. Yavapai College District Governing 
Board will promote a healthy working relationship with college president through 
respect, supportive, open, and honest communication.  Trustees will refer contacts from 
employees, students, and community residents to the president. 
 

E. Authority rests with the entire board.  The Board’s voice is expressed through the 
policies and actions it takes in the official meetings.  Once the Board has decided on a 
policy or position, a Yavapai College District Governing Board must be prepared to 
honor the Boards decision. As individual’s, Yavapai College District Governing Board  
members have no legal authority to determine policies, programs, or procedures or to 
direct staff.  
 

F. Yavapai College District Governing Board will demonstrate a commitment to informed, 
ethical decision-making by reviewing Board materials provided, attending scheduled 
meetings, and requesting data and information through protocols established by the 
Board in conjunction with the president. 
 

6 of 64



 
BOARD APPROVAL | January 28, 2022 

G. Yavapai College District Governing Board will communicate and promote the needs of 
the community to the college and the needs of the college to the community.  With all 
communication, Yavapai College District Governing Board will respect established roles 
and procedures for communicating with the media and other community groups. 
 

H. Yavapai College District Governing Board will devote time to activities that will enhance 
the knowledge of the college, and higher education issues, Yavapai College District 
Governing Board will engage in a regular and ongoing process of professional 
development and continuous improvement and participate in college events as 
appropriate.  
 

 

 

District 1 Signature ___________________________ 
Ray Sigafoos 

 
District 2 Signature ___________________________ 

          Deb McCasland 
 

District 3 Signature ___________________________ 
          Paul Chevalier 

 
District 4 Signature ___________________________ 

          Chris Kuknyo 
 

District 5 Signature ___________________________ 
          Steve Bracety   
 
 

7 of 64



Yavapai College  
District Governing Board 

Workshop   
 

Monday, November 14, 2022 
 9:00 a.m. 

 
Rock House  

Prescott Campus 
 1100 East Sheldon Street 
Prescott, Arizona 86301 

 
Members Present: 
Ms. Deb McCasland, Board Chair 
Mr. Ray Sigafoos, Secretary  
Mr. Paul Chevalier, Board Member  
Mr. Mitch Padilla, Board Member 
Mr. Chris Kuknyo, Board Member 
Administration Present: 
Dr. Lisa B. Rhine, President 
Atty. Lynne Adams, Board Attorney  
Ms. Yvonne Sandoval, Executive Assistant 

 
 

MINUTES  
 
 

1. General Functions: Procedural  
a. Call to Order {Time: 1} 

Chair McCasland called the Yavapai College District Governing Board Workshop to 
order at 9:00 a.m. 
 

b. Adoption of Agenda – DECISION {Time: 1}  
Secretary Sigafoos moved, seconded by Member Padilla, to change the order 
of the agenda with item 3.a The Association of Community College Trustees 
Review to be moved after item 3.c.  Motion carried unanimously (Ayes: 
McCasland, Sigafoos, Chevalier, Padilla, and Kuknyo).  

 
2. Board Business  

a. Executive Session – Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(1), Review of President’s 
Employment Agreement – Attorney Lynne Adams - PROCEDURAL {Time: 60} 
 

b. Executive Session -- Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3) & (4), Discussion or 
Consultation for Legal Advice with the Board’s Attorney Regarding the President’s 
Employment Contract and to consider its position and instruct its attorney regarding 
the President’s Employment Contract – Attorney Lynne Adams - PROCEDURAL  
Secretary Sigafoos moved, seconded by Member Kuknyo, to go into 
Executive Session pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(1), Review of President’s 
Employment Agreement and A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3) & (4), Discussion or 
Consultation for Legal Advice with the Board’s Attorney Regarding the 

8 of 64



President’s Employment Contract and to consider its position and instruct its 
attorney regarding the President’s Employment Contract.  Motion carried 
unanimously (Ayes: McCasland, Sigafoos, Chevalier, Padilla, and Kuknyo). 
 
The Board convened in Executive Session at 9:08 a.m. 

 
c. Reconvene in Public Session – Attorney Lynne Adams 

 
The Board reconvened in public session at 9:50 a.m. 
 

d. Possible Action RE: President’s Evaluation and Consideration of President’s 
Contract as a result of Executive Session – Attorney Lynne Adams - DECISION 
{Time: 5} 
Member Sigafoos moved, seconded by Member Chevalier, to instruct the 
Board’s attorney to negotiate a revision to the President’s contract regarding 
termination payments as discussed in executive session, with the revised 
contract to be approved by the Governing Board at a future meeting. 
 
Member Padilla requested an amendment to the pending motion.  Member 
Sigafoos agreed to the amendment, but Member Chevalier did not agree to 
the amendment. 
 
The initial motion passed 3-2 (Ayes: Chevalier, Sigafoos, Kuknyo; Nays: 
McCasland, Padilla). 
 
Member Padilla moved, seconded by Chair McCasland, to specifically 
approve a modification only to paragraph 9 of the President’s current contract 
to increase the amount to be paid to Dr. Rhine in the event her employment is 
terminated on the basis of poor performance only to payments equal to a) two 
years of her Base Salary or b) 50% of the amount of her Base Salary for the 
remainder of the Term of the Agreement, whichever amount is greater as of 
the effective date of termination.  This motion replaced and clarified the 
previously passed motion.  Motion passed 4-1 (Ayes: McCasland, Sigafoos, 
Padilla, and Kuknyo; Nay: Chevalier). 
 
Member Padilla moved, seconded by Secretary Sigafoos, to approve and 
adopt the 2022-2023 President’s Goals. Motion passed unanimously (Ayes: 
McCasland, Sigafoos, Padilla, Kuknyo, Chevalier). 
 

Short Recess – Workshop recessed at 10:13 a.m. and reconvened at 10:18 a.m. 

3. Study Session   
a. Changing Higher Education Landscape - INFORMATION, DISCUSSION, 

AND DECISION – Dr. Lisa Rhine {Time: 120} 
i. Scott Van Pelt Video 

The Board viewed the presentation from Mr. Scott Van Pelt, the Future of 
Higher Education: A Time for Leadership.  

 

Lunch – Workshop recessed at 11:38 a.m. and reconvened at 12:03 p.m. 

9 of 64



ii. A New Infrastructure Presentation  
Dr. Rhine provided a presentation on a new infrastructure for the College. 
She presented on The Great Upheaval book, the education competition in 
Arizona, and changing technology.  
 
Board Member Kuknyo stated that the statistics provided in the video and 
from Dr. Rhine show that a change is needed.  Chair McCasland stated that 
the College has an experienced person to guide the College. 
 
Member Chevalier stated that increasing online courses would not work in all 
courses, but only in the right programs. Member Padilla agreed that online 
courses will not work in every course, but the College needs to move in a 
direction that will help the community.  COVID-19 has changed everything 
including education, and the Board needs to trust that Dr. Rhine will move 
the College forward.   
 
Secretary Sigafoos asked what are we in business in?  Are we not in six 
locations (campuses)? How do we adapt those campuses to these new 
changes?  The College’s libraries will need to change, and how will we do this 
and stay within financial requirements?  Dr. Rhine stated that the College has 
made some changes in the priorities for capital expenditures, and the 
Learning Commons is one of those changes.  We are learning the way 
business is changing for the College and how we need to be nimble do that 
business to better serve our student and the community.  
 
Secretary Sigafoos asked a question about the resolution’s wording.  He 
asked what ‘infrastructure’ meant in articles four and five of the proposed 
resolution.  Dr. Rhine stated that the word ‘infrastructure’ is meant in a 
broader sense: Are the industry partnerships in place? Are we growing the 
non-credit and short-term courses? Are we moving to competency based 
learning?   
 
Member Padilla asked who would create the program for the metaverse for 
the College. Dr. Rhine stated that it is the faculty for the specific program 
who would create the subject content. The learning commons would be the 
location where the experts would train the faculty on the metaversity.   
 
Member Padilla asked about internet connectivity that would be needed for 
programs that will be taught in the metaversity.  The county has locations 
where there is no internet/Wi-Fi connection. Chair McCasland suggested 
partnering with the city/town libraries to provide internet/Wi-Fi connections 
for students who live in those locations.  
 
Member Chevalier stated that he sees the metaversity expanding the online 
courses but cautions the College that the metaversity will take us to a point 
but will not take over the hands-on courses.  The College will need to 
combine the two methods.   

10 of 64



    
iii. Yavapai College District Governing Board Resolution Directing the 

President to Create the Necessary Infrastructure to Meet the Changing 
Needs of Students and Employees – Resolution 2022-10 (Attached) 
Member Chevalier moved, seconded by Member Padilla, to approve 
the Yavapai College District Governing Board Resolution Directing 
the President to Create the Necessary Infrastructure to Meet the 
Changing Needs of Student and Employees – Resolution 2022-10.   
Motion carried unanimously (Ayes: McCasland, Sigafoos, Chevalier, 
Padilla, and Kuknyo). 

Short Recess – Workshop recessed at 1:07 p.m. and reconvened at 1:15 p.m. 
 

b. District Governing Board Policies Review - INFORMATION, DISCUSSION, 
AND DECISION – Dr. David Borofsky, Director of the Arizona Association of 
Community College Trustees {Time: 90} 
Dr. Borofsky facilitated a discussion on the Board’s policies and a review of their 
self-assessment.  He reviewed the following areas: A.R.S. Language Title 15, Chapter 
12; pertinent Board Policies; Board Assessment comparison from September 2021 – 
May 2022; areas in which the Board can improve.  
 
Member Chevalier indicated that he believes that his first duty and responsibility are 
to the people who elected him from District Three.  He is responsible for ensuring 
that they are treated equitably by the College. He continued by saying that the 
Arizona Association of Community College Trustees (AACCT) Handbook does not 
address the individual responsibility to the district that a board member is elected 
from and that the Handbook should address this issue.  
 
Member Chevalier made a statement about Board Policy 101 – College Priorities.  
He indicated that the policy does not include information from the Scott Van Pelt 
video and the presentation from Dr. Rhine. He would like the policy to discuss how 
the College will be delivering some of those new courses. He would also like the 
Board Policies to be expanded to include more details about the Governing Board’s 
duties and the President’s duties.  Secretary Sigafoos stated that policy included in 
the PowerPoint is not the complete Board Policy 101 – College Priorities and noted 
that Priority 1: Education has six additional points that are not listed.  Those 
additional points mention the President’s responsibilities to meet the goals for 
student success.  
 
Dr. Rhine noted that the institutional goals are reflected in the College’s strategic 
plan, which she brought to the Board, which were developed with the Board, and 
which were approved by the Board.  The Board does have a say in and approval of 
the direction that all of the College’s the operations align to.  Member Chevalier said 
that more goals need to be included. 
 
Chair McCasland stated that many of the items that are being discussed by Member 
Chevalier are operational.  The Board only has one employee, the President, and the 
Board has given the President the operational responsibility, as stated in Board 
Policy 101 – College Priorities.  She stated that the Board hires and fires the 
President, evaluates the President, and approves the College budget. 

11 of 64



 
Member Chevalier suggested that Board Policy 101 – College Priorities needs to be 
reviewed and edited this year.   
 
Member Padilla commented on the creation of the College.  Over time, the College 
works with the new population growth of the county, and the College tries to 
address those growths in population, but it does not mean the College should have 
to duplicate all programs and opportunities in all areas of the county.  Member 
Padilla noted that Member Chevalier understands the Board’s policies but just does 
not accept them.   
 
Member Kuknyo commented on the production of ‘Hello Dolly’ and noted that 
everyone in the production was from Yavapai County.  It was an excellent 
production. 
 
Member Chevalier commented on Board Policy 305 – Board Governing Focus & 
Style. He stated that he is trying to do his best to provide a diversity of viewpoints, as 
indicated in subpart 2. 
 
In the review of Board Policy 306 – Board Member Code of Conduct & Ethics, 
Member Chevalier provided his clarification on what he believes what it means by 
“abiding by the majority’s decision.”  Although you must comply with the majority’s 
decision, it does not mean you agree with the majority’s decision, or that you don’t 
say you disagree with it, or that you don’t try to change it.   
 
Chair McCasland stated that the Board has the vote on the decision and expressing 
one’s own opinion against sound like undermining the President’s authority of the 
College.  The Board had a discussion regarding Board members’ disagreements with 
Board decisions and this policy. 
 
In the review of Board Policy 307 – Board Member Responsibilities and Obligations,  
Chair McCasland stated that is it clear that each Board member should bring up their 
views on issues, including the potential impact on their own districts, but the Board 
votes for the good of all the residents of the county.  The President follows the 
Board’s decision, and the Board supports the President’s operational 
implementation.   
 
Member Kuknyo commented that the Board needs to plan for the future for the 
county, and with the President leading the College, who sees what is going on with 
the future of education, the Board needs to get behind her.  This Board should be a 
functioning board, work together and make concessions when needed, and be happy 
when the meetings are over.  
 
Member Chevalier discussed his accountability to his district versus his accountability 
to the county as a whole.  Member Kuknyo indicated that he believed that all Board 
members need to look out for the county as a whole, not just their own districts.  
Member Padilla asked for the President’s response to Member Chevalier’s previous 
comments about the brewery program, so that the record was clear and not just 
based on Member Chevalier’s assertions.  President Rhine responded and noted that 
there was a needs assessment for the program.  Member Padilla noted that Member 

12 of 64



Chevalier continues to bring up past issues and does not really abide by the 
majority’s decision. 
 
In the review of Board Policy 401 – Delegation to and Accountability of President,  
Dr. Borofsky noted that the Board is doing a very good job, but that it can approve 
in its operations by letting the past and past decisions go.  Chair McCasland stated 
that the College has a leader – the President – and she is doing a great job of running 
the College.    
 

c. The Association of Community College Trustees Review – INFORMATION 
AND DISCUSSION – Board Chair Deb McCasland {Time: 30}  
Chair McCasland reviewed with the Board the Association of Community College 
Trustees Conference.  She discussed that the conference had very informed sessions.   
 
Member Kuknyo commented on a session he attended about a lunch program that 
grew into a program that assisted parents with better paying jobs. He also discussed 
how some of these programs teach parents in eight-week to four-week classes. He 
stated that he attended the partnership with industry session.   
 
Member Padilla encouraged all board members to attend the conference. The 
networking between boards from other community college is very beneficial. He 
attended a few sessions, and one of them was on foster care.  He discussed how the 
kids, once they reach 18-years-old, are cut lose from foster care with only a few 
resources.  A lot of the foster kids fall through the cracks and end up on the streets. 
The presenting community colleges were assisting these foster kids and mentoring 
them.   
 
Chair McCasland, Dr. Rhine, and Mr. Jenkins presented at the conference.   
 
Chair McCasland stated that she has learned from the sessions.  She attended session 
on how boards work together.   
 
Secretary Sigafoos stated that the Board is becoming an informed Board because the 
members attend the conferences and classes.  He also agreed that networking is very 
important, and he learned something about foster care.  He recommended that the 
College contact Court Appointed Special Advocates for Children (C.A.S.A.) in 
Yavapai County.  He also indicated that he had attended a legal presentation at the 
conference, which focused on setting up a pro bono legal advice clinic for students 
and faculty.      

 
4. Adjournment of Board Workshop: Procedural - DECISION {Time: 1} 

Member Kuknyo moved, seconded by Secretary Sigafoos, to adjourn the Board 
Workshop. Motion carried unanimously.  (Ayes: McCasland, Sigafoos, Chevalier, 
Padilla, and Kuknyo).   
 
Workshop adjourned at 2:43 p.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 

13 of 64



 
____________________________________   ___________________ 
Yvonne Sandoval, Recording Secretary    Date 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________  ______________________________ 
Ms. Deb McCasland, Board Chair    Mr. Ray Sigafoos, Secretary 

 

14 of 64



 

 

Yavapai College  
District Governing Board 

Regular Meeting  
 

Tuesday, November 15, 2022 
 1:00 p.m. 

 
Room M-137 

Verde Valley Campus 
 601 Black Hills Drive 

Clarkdale, Arizona 86324 
 
Members Present: 
Ms. Deb McCasland, Board Chair 
Mr. Ray Sigafoos, Secretary  
Mr. Paul Chevalier, Board Member  
Mr. Mitch Padilla, Board Member 
Mr. Chris Kuknyo, Board Member via Zoom 
Administration Present: 
Dr. Lisa B. Rhine, President 
Atty. Lynne Adams, Board Attorney  
Ms. Yvonne Sandoval, Executive Assistant 

 
MINUTES 

 
https://yavapai.hosted.panopto.com/Panopto/Pages/Viewer.aspx?id=893efd23-4d5a-44f6-a0d4-

af4e018a90a9 
 

1. General Functions: Procedural  
a. Call to Order {Time: 1} 

Chair McCasland called Yavapai College District Governing Board Meeting to order 
at 1:01 p.m. 
 

b. Pledge of Allegiance {Time: 1} 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Board Member Chevalier.  

 
c. Adoption of Agenda – DECISION {Time: 1}  

Secretary Sigafoos moved, seconded by Member Padilla, to adopt the District 
Governing Board Agenda.  Motion carried unanimously (Ayes: McCasland, 
Sigafoos, Chevalier, Padilla, and Kuknyo).   

 
d. Open Call – INFORMATION {Time: 10} (Recording at 1:30) 

The following members of the public requested to speak: 
1. Scott Jablow (Recording at 1:35) 
2. Robert Oliphant (Recording at 5:17) 

 
2. Study Session   

a. President’s Reports INFORMATION {Time: 60} 

15 of 64



 

 

i. Verde Valley Academic Program Highlight – Dr. Diane Ryan (Recording at 
9:30) 

1. Verde Valley Academic Program Highlight – Aaron Rodriguez, 
Verde Valley Skills Trade Center Faculty (Attached) 
Mr. Aaron Rodriguez gave a presentation to the board encompassing 
what his Construction Program and students have been achieving, 
with their most recent project being a tiny house. His team is using 
the tiny house as a prototype to be able to sell the tiny houses his 
students build. They are also moving to an 8-week model to attempt to 
increase enrollment among the working and retired population.  
Recorded discussion and comments are available and begin at 
10:40. 

ii. Verde Valley Technical High School Presentation – Superintendent Steven 
King, Cottonwood-Oak Creek School District #6  
Mr. Steven King and the Student Council President discussed the Verde 
Valley Technical High School and thanked the Governing Board for their 
support. Mr. King presented a video about Verde Valley Technical High 
School and how the school is helping students.  
Recorded discussion and comments are available and begin at 34:26. 

iii. College Council – Dr. Diane Ryan, Dr. Clint Ewell, and Mr. Rodney Jenkins 
1. Faculty Senate – Dr. Karen Palmer (Attached) 

Dr. Palmer presented updates about faculty events that have been 
occurring recently. She also thanked the Governing Board and 
President for retention bonuses for faculty.  
Recorded discussion and comments are available and begin at 
51:20. 

2. Staff Association – Ms. Bobbi Evens (Attached) 
Ms. Evens was unavailable, but Ms. Kristin Varon-Burkhart 
presented in her place. Ms. Varon-Burkhart discussed the annual 
Winter Celebration, including dates and locations. The event was 
catered to allow all staff to enjoy the event and enhance the feeling of 
belonging.  
Recorded discussion and comments are available and begin at 
56:28. 

3. Student Government Association – Mr. Clay Christensen (Attached) 
Mr. Clay Christensen discussed a Student Focus Group and indicated 
that it was a success.  He also discussed “The Unheard 22” initiative. 
The Student Government Association is working to begin the next 
initiative, “The Clothing Closet”. 
Recorded discussion and comments are available and begin at 
1:00:03. 

iv. Budget to Actual Monthly Report and Cash Reserves Monthly Report 
(Attached) 

Dr. Lisa Rhine closed the President’s Report with the Budget to 
Actual Monthly Reports and Cash Reserves Monthly Report.  
Recorded discussion and comments are available and begin at 
1:03:52. 

 

16 of 64



 

 

b. Yavapai College Facilities Master Plan - INFORMATION, DISCUSSION, AND 
DECISION – Dr. Clint Ewell {Time: 60} (Attached) 
Dr. Clint Ewell presented the proposed Yavapai College Facilities Master Plan.  
Recorded discussion and comments are available and begin at 1:04:05. 
 
Dr. Clint Ewell explained that “this plan is designed to serve as a living document 
that is adaptable to changes, allowing flexibility in its application as specific planning 
initiatives and goals evolve over time.” The plan is not set in stone, and the plan 
being presented is the best plan of what they know today.  
 
 Dr. Ewell stated the purpose of his presentation is to share the report and plan with 
the Governing Board. Dr. Ewell asked for approval of the concepts. He defined the 
concepts as “making sure the facilities keep Yavapai College relevant and in support 
of supporting our students in our community.” Specific projects will be brought 
before the Board on an annual basis, so approving the plan does not approve 
specific projects within the plan, but rather the direction of the plan as it stands 
today. 
 
Question from Member Padilla: how do you know when the EV marketplace has 
developed to the point where the college is going to entertain launching a program, 
for example maintenance of a fleet that gets purchased by a community? How do 
you recognize it is time?  
Response from John Morgan: The Advisory Board is tasked with that, and they are 
figuring out how to position themselves for programs in demand. We meet twice a 
year with the auto advisory board.  
 
Question from Member Padilla: Who comprises the Advisory Board?  
Response from John Morgan: The Advisory Board is made up of local industry 
people.  
 
Question from Member Chevalier: How many kinds of courses do you have?  
Response from John Morgan: There are 3 major programs and about 20 different 
types of courses regarding automotives.  
 
Question from Secretary Sigafoos: Where is the College with offering automotive on 
the eastern side of the county?  
Response John Morgan: The program is large, but we did not get the numbers when 
it was tried on the eastern side of the county. EV may be a different story. 
 
Question from Secretary Sigafoos: On page 58 of the document, is that listing based 
on the priority? Or is that all projects that are priority one?  
Response from Dr. Ewell: The projects on page 58 are the priority projects. Projects 
listed on page 59 are other important projects that were identified that we didn’t 
want to lose from the master project list.  
 
Question from Secretary Sigafoos: On the list of projects, which one is project one 
and which is project nine? Or is it too early to tell? 
Response Dr. Ewell: It’s too early to tell, although the Digital Learning Commons is 
likely be project one. In March, when the 5-year Capital Improvement plan budget 

17 of 64



 

 

recommendation is presented, the administration will indicate which programs they 
recommend starting with. 
 
Question from Secretary Sigafoos: The list is what you’ve agreed probably needs to 
be done and the Governing Board needs to decide if it’s a good idea or not a good 
idea. Is that where we are?  
Response from Dr. Ewell: Yes. The first half of report is all the environmental 
factors that either the College brought forth to the consultant and/or the consultant 
brought to us saying here is what is happening in the higher ed realm and because of 
that, here are the projects that we currently think we need to do to address to make 
sure that Yavapai College remains relevant.  
 
Secretary Sigafoos moved, seconded by Member Kuknyo, to approve the 
priorities and the Facilities Master Plan as presented.  
 
Question Member Kuknyo:  Has the College lined up funding for all of the projects?  
Response from Dr. Ewell: We have funding lined up for capital projects that the 
board has already approved. For other portions of the Plan, including the overall 
budget, the administration will provide more information to the board at its March 
meeting. Dr. Ewell explained that there are funding options available through 
existing revenues streams, but that the College will have to research options as the 
projects come to fruition.  
 
Member Chevalier made a statement that he feels there is insufficient information, 
and he cannot vote for it. He brought up student housing and felt there needed to be 
more research completed on that subject. He cited the issue with the brewery and 
distillery that was presented in May. Dr. Ewell reminded the board that he’s not 
asking for approval of the slate of projects. He’s asking for consideration of approval 
of the plan to modernize Yavapai College in ways that will support face-to-face 
learning, career technical education and providing better support to non-traditional 
adult learners.  Member Chevalier indicated if that was the motion, he would vote for 
it, but he does not believe that is the motion.  
 
Chair McCasland provided some comments to the board about what the President’s 
role is and the Governing Board’s role is. Member Chevalier indicated that he agrees 
to disagree with her comments.  
 
Secretary Sigafoos moved, seconded by member Kuknyo, to amend the 
pending motion to read as follows: to approve the Facilities Master Plan as 
presented, whose intention is to modernize Yavapai College facilities over the 
next 7 years to enhance face-to-face learning, adult learners and career tech 
ed, and to help Yavapai College remain relevant in the marketplace. Motion 
passes 4-1 (Ayes: McCasland, Sigafoos, Padilla, and Kuknyo; Nay: Chevalier). 
 

Short Recess – Meeting recessed at 2:40 p.m. and reconvened at 2:58 p.m. 
 

c. Overview and Environmental Scan of Yavapai County and Yavapai College - 
INFORMATION, DISCUSSION, AND DECISION – Dr. Tom Hughes 
{Time: 60} (Attached) 

18 of 64



 

 

Dr. Tom Hughes presented the Overview and Environmental Scan of Yavapai 
County and Yavapai College.  
Recorded discussion and comments are available and begin at time 1:39:31. 
 
The purpose of the scan is to provide a wide range of information that will enable 
decision-makers to understand the current context in which we operate, predict 
future trends and incorporate this understanding into the College’s strategic 
direction. The five areas discussed with trends and statistics were: demographics, 
social & political, economy & workforce, education, and technology.  
 
Question from Member Kuknyo: Why aren’t people going back to work?  
Response from Dr. Hughes: The county has a larger number of retirees in the 
population. We still haven’t bounced back to pre-pandemic numbers but are not sure 
why. Member Chevalier commented that he believes this is due to off-book 
employment.  
 
Discussion from Secretary Sigafoos about a prior presentation that indicated there’s a 
demographic cliff coming. Dr. Hughes clarified that the cliff is predicted in 2025, 
which is when people coming out of K-12 are anticipated to drop precipitously in 
number. About 50% of the high school graduates that are going to go to college 
spend some time at Yavapai College first. 
 
Question from Secretary Sigafoos: When the cliff happens, what is the projection for 
the enrollment? 
Response from Dr. Hughes:  The College will focus on adult students and younger 
Hispanic students. Our traditional student population is going to shrink. Some 
enrollments will be picked up in dual enrollment and concurrent enrollment. There 
will be a smaller pool, but the College could have a larger capture rate. The 
Bachelor’s degree programs and innovation could assist in capturing more students 
from that smaller pool. 
 
Question from Secretary Sigafoos to the President: Those kinds of things are baked 
into the plan that we just adopted, based on our assumptions from yesterday, and the 
discussion today? 
Response from President Rhine: Yes, yes, absolutely. 
 
Statistics presented about college attendees: Students age 25+ = 45%. Students 
working while attending college = 76%.  
 
Question from Chair McCasland: To clarify, that percentage is students attending 
Yavapai College but also working? 
Response from Dr. Hughes: Correct, they’re enrolled as a student and working. 
About 34% of them were working full-time.  
 
Statistics continued about College attendees. Students who are first generation 
college goers = 35%. The College does not track the number of students who have 
children or housing insecurity. 
 

19 of 64



 

 

Question from Member Padilla: The 4-year universities, including ASU, are 
beginning to prepare to offer the associates degree. Is that going to include dual 
enrollment?  
Response from Dr. Hughes: That is actually where they are going to pilot it. They 
actually run their own charter high school, ASU Digital Prep. That is where they plan 
if they get approval from the AZ border regions to pilot it with their early high 
school. 
 
Follow-up question from Member Padilla: So, there will probably be some savings 
then to the high school students? 
Response from Dr. Hughes: I think at that point, yes.  
 
President Rhine commented that at yesterday’s board retreat, the board was exposed 
to the metaverse. There are actually 10-12 universities that have created metaversities 
or metacolleges. They have created a digital twin of their campus in the metaverse 
and actually have students participating in that for 3 semesters now. President Rhine 
will have the opportunity to visit those metaversities with Ryan Gray.  
 
Question from Member Padilla: When you look at 4-year universities across the 
country, especially the private universities, they operate many times where they give 
no incoming credit for college classes that have been taken by an incoming freshman 
for example elsewhere. So, they require 120 hours to get to their bachelor's. There 
are some that will require a minimum of 90 hours so that a lot more can transfer in. 
Who sets that parameter? Is it an accreditation committee that the school belongs?  
Response from Dr. Hughes: I would say that most of that determination is probably 
by the colleges. Private universities and the more elite universities are less likely to 
take credits from other institutions. Those looking for competitive advantage might 
look at taking credits because that’s used as a competitive recruiting advantage. 
 
Follow-up question from Padilla: Do you envision providing students with a degree 
program option like Golden Gate offers?  They package degree programs for 
students using attendance at other institutions. 
Response from Dr. Hughes: Yes, I think it’s very likely to happen. I know one of the 
reasons that Golden Gate partnered is they’re trying to transition those students into 
their 4-year program. I think you’ll see much more of the packaging from institutions 
with a certain amount of credits that would be required at that institution. 
 
President Rhine commented the board previously passed a resolution to move 
toward a diversifying the curriculum to offer more flexible just-in-time, industry-
driven curriculum. The resolution supports new designs of curriculum that will take 
place in the new digital learning commons. The necessary steps are being taken to 
remain relevant and a contender.  

 
d. Board Liaisons’ Reports - INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION {Time: 10} 

i. Board Spokesperson – Board Chair McCasland 
Chair McCasland presented an update on the events she has represented the 
Governing Board.  
Recorded discussion and comments are available and begin at 2:34:00. 

20 of 64



 

 

Attended the following events: National Convention, Open House in 
Prescott & Verde Valley, Performances of Hello Dolly, Yavapai College 
Foundation November Board Meeting (with Secretary Sigafoos), Wine and 
Dine in the Vines, met with state college auditors, co-presented a session at 
the ACCT National Convention, shared personal remembrances of Opal 
Allen at the dedication of the “Opal Tenney Goodman Allen Founder’s 
Foyer”, both Yavapai Community College Outreach sessions in Prescott & 
Clarkdale, and the Unheard 22 ceremony in Prescott. 

ii. Arizona Association of Community College Trustee (AACCT) – Board Chair 
McCasland and Secretary Sigafoos 
Chair McCasland presented an update.  
Recorded discussion and comments are available and begin at 2:35:57. 
Trustee State Conference scheduled for April 19 & 20 in Phoenix. 
Participated in AC4 (College Residence Group) and the AACCT executive 
committee zoom meeting.  

iii. Yavapai College Foundation – Board Chair McCasland 
Secretary Sigafoos provided an update on the Yavapai College Foundation.  
Recorded discussion and comments are available and begin at 3:07:53.   
Foundation appears to be on target with their fundraising. Brad Clifford 
provided information about the athletic program, including presenting the 
student athlete coaches. The Foundation has offered more than $1 million in 
scholarships for students to attend the College. 
 

e. Dates and Time of Future Meetings and Events - INFORMATION AND 
DISCUSSION {Time: 5} (Recording at 2:38:20) 

i. 2022-2023 Dates, Times, and Places of Future Board Meetings, Workshops, 
and Retreats (Attached) 

ii. 2022-2023 Dates, Times, and Places of Future College Events (Attached) 
iii. 2022-2023 Dates, Times, and Places of Future National, State, and Local 

Conferences (Attached) 
 

3. Board Business  
a. Consent Agenda – DECISION {Time: 5}  

i. Board Regular Minutes – Tuesday, October 18, 2022 (Attached) 
ii. Waiver of Conflict Regarding an Intergovernmental Agreement Regarding 

the Northern Arizona Regional Training Academy (NARTA) Academy 
Sergeant (Attached) 

iii. Yavapai College Restated Memorandum of Understanding with Yavapai 
College Foundation (Attached) 

iv. Receipt of Report on Revenues and Expenditures for September 2022 
(Attached) 

v. Yavapai College Summary of New Program Proposal for Bachelor of Science 
in Business – Organizational Management and Leadership Concentration 
(Attached)  

Recorded discussion and comments are available and begin at 2:41.46.   
Member Chevalier complimented the minutes completed for October.  
 

21 of 64



 

 

Member Chevalier moved, seconded by Kuknyo, to approve the Consent Agenda. 
Motion passed unanimously (Ayes: McCasland, Sigafoos, Chevalier, Padilla and 
Kuknyo). 

 
4. Adjournment of Board Regular Meeting: Procedural - DECISION {Time: 1} 

Member Kuknyo moved, seconded by Secretary Sigafoos, to adjourn the Regular 
Board Meeting.  Motion carried unanimously (Ayes: McCasland, Sigafoos, Chevalier, 
Padilla, and Kuknyo).   

 
Regular Meeting adjourned at 4:01 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
 
____________________________________   ___________________ 
Deanne K. Petty, Recording Secretary    Date 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________  ______________________________ 
Ms. Deb McCasland, Board Chair    Mr. Ray Sigafoos, Secretary 

 

22 of 64



23 of 64



24 of 64



25 of 64



26 of 64



27 of 64



28 of 64



29 of 64



INTERGOVERNMENTAL
AGREEMENT AMENDMENT

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT
OF ECONOMIC SECURITY

1789 W. Jefferson Street,
Mail Drop 1541,

Phoenix, Arizona 85007
(602) 364-0170

2. Section 3.0 Definitions are replaced as follows: 

3.1. Child Care – the service that is provided for a fee to a child (birth through twelve (12) years of age and is
unaccompanied by a parent or guardian during a portion of a twenty-four (24) hour day.

3.2. Child Care Providers – is inclusive of ADES Certified Family Child Care Homes, ADES Contracted Child
Care Centers and Group Homes that are regulated by the Arizona Department of Health Services
(ADHS) and hold a current registration agreement with ADES, and Child Care Providers that are licensed
and regulated by the ADHS.

3.3. Child Care Resource & Referral (CCR&R) – pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-1967 assists families in choosing
Child Care through referrals to local Child Care Providers, information on state licensing requirements,
availability of Child Care subsidies, and other pertinent information.

3.4. Division of Child Care (DCC) - the subdivision of the ADES that has a responsibility for providing financial
support to increase the availability and improve the quality of Child Care in Arizona.

3.5. Eligible Student – an individual participating part-time or full-time in a Nursing, Early Childhood
Education, K-12 Education or an ADES approved degree program at the contracted Community College
and employed in a work activity for monetary compensation, with an income up to eighty-five percent
(85%) of the State Median Income (SMI), who is a parent to a child ages birth through twelve (12) years
of age. 

3.6. Higher Education Child Care Project (HECCP) – the title of the project, through contracts with community
colleges and universities, to provide Child Care assistance to Eligible Students.

3. Section 4.0 Service Description, Subsection 4.1. is revised as follows: 

4.1.   This service will provide Child Care assistance to Eligible Students and is administered by the Contractor.
Of the total yearly funding, the college may use five percent (5%) for its administration of the HECCP,
which includes eligibility of initial and on-going Child Care assistance payments, tracking student
progress in their eligible major/degree program, verifying student participation with ADES Child Care
assistance, and reporting metrics to the ADES.

4. Section 5.0 Responsibilities, Subsection 5.1.1. b is revised as follows:

5.1.1. b) HECCP Child Care assistance for Eligible Students;

5. Section 5.0 Responsibilities, Subsection 5.1.2. is revised as follows:

5.1.2. Verify students meet the following eligibility requirements:
a) Students must be enrolled in one (1) of the following programs with the Contractor:

1.) Nursing program; or
2.) Early Childhood Educational program; or
3.) K-12 (Elementary and Secondary) Education program; or
4.) An ADES approved degree program; and

b) Verify Student income level does not exceed eighty-five percent (85%) of the SMI, and
c) Verify children's ages, birth through twelve (12) years of age.

6. Section 5.0 Responsibilities, Subsection 5.1.3. is revised as follows:

5.1.3. Create and maintain a mechanism for administering the HECCP Child Care assistance payments to
Eligible Students.

05/13/2022 Intergovernmental Agreement Amendment v4 Page 2 of 4
30 of 64



INTERGOVERNMENTAL
AGREEMENT AMENDMENT

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT
OF ECONOMIC SECURITY

1789 W. Jefferson Street,
Mail Drop 1541,

Phoenix, Arizona 85007
(602) 364-0170

7. Section 5.0 Responsibilities, Subsection 5.1.4. is replaced as follows:

5.1.4. Ensure that Eligible Students who receive ADES Child Care assistance expend ADES Child Care
assistance funds before HECCP Child Care assistance payments through this program are applied to
student accounts (or college mechanism for Child Care payments).
a) Students receiving ADES Child Care assistance and HECCP Child Care assistance must provide to

the Contractor a record of the parent’s ADES Provider/Parent/Guardian Agreement
(CCA-0208A).

8. Section 5.0 Responsibilities, Subsection 5.1.5 is revised as follows:

5.1.5. Provide Eligible Students with information on how to obtain a listing of approved Child Care Providers
through CCR&R.

9. Section 5.0 Responsibilities, Subsection 5.1.6 is revised as follows:

5.1.6. Ensure that Eligible Students who receive ADES Child Care assistance through HECCP, utilize only an
approved Child Care Provider within the ADES Child Care Provider network, as identified in Section 3.2.

10. Section 5.0 Responsibilities, Subsection 5.1.7 is revised as follows:

5.1.7. Conduct recruitment and outreach activities to include potentially Eligible Students in the HECCP to
receive assistance to meet their Child Care needs through this program.

11. Section 5.1 Responsibilities, Subsection 5.1.9. is revised as follows:

5.1.9. Within thirty (30) days of the end of each semester, or within fifteen (15) days following the end of each
month, the Contractor shall submit to ADES a complete and accurate invoice for reimbursement for
services specified in Section 4.0 Service Description, up to the following amounts for each fiscal year,
including semester break reimbursements, with the following:

a.) $150,017 Fiscal Year 2022, where 5% ($7,501) of this funding will be available to the Contractor
to administer the program.

b.) $150,017 Fiscal Year 2023, where 5% ($7,501 of this funding will be available to the Contractor
to administer the program.

c.) $150,017 Fiscal Year 2024, where 5% ($7,501) of this funding will be available to the Contractor
to administer the program.

12. Section 9.0 Payment Procedure, Subsection 9.4. is replaced as follows:
 

9.4 The Contractor shall notify ADES by September 1, 2023, of any allocated funds that are unexpended with no
future plans to expend for services during the term of this Agreement to allow for reallocation at
the discretion of ADES.

13. Section 10.0 Reporting Requirements, Subsection 10.1. is replaced as follows:

10.1. The Contractor shall provide to ADES the following reports within thirty (30) days of the end of each
reporting period, as defined by the Contractor.

10.1.1. Semester-End Narrative Report, broken down by campus location and each degree program
including:
a) Number of students who are eligible to receive Child Care assistance through the HECCP.
b) Number of students who are eligible for the HECCP and placed on a waiting list.
c) Number of students receiving Child Care assistance through the HECCP.

05/13/2022 Intergovernmental Agreement Amendment v4 Page 3 of 4
31 of 64

https://des.az.gov/file/19794/download
https://des.az.gov/file/19794/download


INTERGOVERNMENTAL
AGREEMENT AMENDMENT

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT
OF ECONOMIC SECURITY

1789 W. Jefferson Street,
Mail Drop 1541,

Phoenix, Arizona 85007
(602) 364-0170

d) Number of children of students receiving Child Care assistance through the HECCP.
e) Number of students who receive Child Care assistance through the HECCP, and also received

ADES Child Care assistance.
f) Number of students receiving Child Care assistance through the HECCP who graduated in their

field of study, reported by each degree program.
g) Number of students receiving Child Care assistance through the HECCP who graduated in their

field of study and attained employment in their field of study, reported by each degree program.
h) Total dollar amount of HECCP Child Care assistance provided.
i) Total dollar amount of administrative cost.

10.1.2 Annual Narrative Report, within thirty (30) days of the end of the final semester of the academic
year, as defined by the Contractor, including:
a) Items from Section 10.1.1, reported since the start of the program; and
b) Stories and feedback of the impact the HECCP has had on the student and university/college

program.

05/13/2022 Intergovernmental Agreement Amendment v4 Page 4 of 4
32 of 64



33 of 64



34 of 64



35 of 64



36 of 64



37 of 64



38 of 64



39 of 64



40 of 64



41 of 64



42 of 64



43 of 64



44 of 64



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
January 30, 2023 
 
 
 
Dear Dr. Janet Nix, 
 
At the January 31, 2023 District Governing Board Workshop, Board members voted via Consent Agenda to 
acknowledge you as the Chief Human Resources Officer for the college and liaison to the Yavapai Combined 
Trust Board.  In addition, Mr. Frank D’Angelo, Business Services & Controller Director will serve as liaison as well.   
Ms. Brittney Hollar, Human Resources Business Partner will serve as the alternate representative on the Yavapai 
Combined Trust Board. 
 
As the alternates, they would be able to attend the regularly scheduled Yavapai Combined Trust Board 
meeting(s) if you are not available and would provide a written report to the Board with any updated 
information as needed.  
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Lisa B. Rhine, Ph.D., 
President      
 
 
 
 

45 of 64



46 of 64



47 of 64



48 of 64



49 of 64



50 of 64



51 of 64



52 of 64



53 of 64



54 of 64



55 of 64



56 of 64



57 of 64



58 of 64



59 of 64



60 of 64



61 of 64



62 of 64



63 of 64



64 of 64


	DGB Workshop AGENDA - January 31, 2023
	2.d DGB Board Policy 302
	3.a DGB Code of Ethics
	3.b.i DGB Workshop Minutes- November 14, 2022
	3.b.iii DGB Regular Minutes - November 15 2022
	3.b.iv IGA NARTA Sergeant
	3.b.v IGA Amendment AZ Department of Economic Security
	3.b.vi Letter for Alternate to Service on Yavapai Combined Trust Board 1 30 2023
	3.b.vii.viii YC Academic Program Deletions and New



